UNITED NATIONS - GENERAL

ECONOMIC B Sevtame 1950
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

AND FRENCH

Dual Distribution

AD HOC COMMITTEE ON REFUGEES AND STATELESS PERSONS
Second Session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FORTIETH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 22 August 1950, at 2.30 p.m.

CONTENTS :

Proposed draft Convention Relating to the Status of
Refugees (E/1618, E/1618/Corr.l, E/1818, E/AC.32/2,
E/AC.32/6, E/AC.32/6/Corr.1, E/AC.32/7, E/iC.32/L.3,
E/AC.32/L.40, E/iC.32/L.41 and E/AC.32/NG0O/1)
(continued)



E/AC.32/SR. 40
page 2

Present:

Chairman:

Rapporteur:

Members:

Belgium
Brazil
China
France
Israel
Turkey

United Kingdom of Great =
Britain and Northern
Ireland

United States of
lmerica

Venezuela
Qbservers:

Ttaly

Switzerland

Mr, LARSEN (Denmark)
Mr. WINTER (Canada)

Mr. HERMENT
Mr. PENTEADO
Mr. CHA

Mr. JUVIGNY
Mr. ROBINSON
Mr. NURELGIN

. Sir Leslie BRAS3

Mr. HENKIN
Mr. PEREZ PEROZO

Mr. MALFATTI
Mr. SCHURCH

Representatives of specialized agencies:

International Labour
Organization

International Refugee
Organ:ization

Mr. WOLF

Mr. WEIS
Mr, KULLMAN

Representatives of non-governmental organizations:

Category B end Register

v

Friends? World Committee
for Consultation

International Co-operative
Woments Guild

Mr. Colin BELL

Miss ROSSIER



page 3

Representatives of non-governmental organizations: (continued)

. Gategory B-and Register (continued) -
. T S R P SV I n-,;:“' -

Iiaison Committee of Women's

International Organizations Miss ROSSIER
Women's International League L
for Peace and Freedom Mrs, BAER
World Jewish Congress V Mr. BIENENFELD
Mr. LIBAN
Secretariat:
Mr, Humphrey — ' " Diréctor; Division of Human Rights
Mr. Giraud ' ‘" Legal Department

Mr, Hogan S Secreétary to the Committee



E/AC.32/SR.40
page 4

PROPOSED DRAFT CONVENTION RELATING TO THE STATUS OF REFUGEES

(E/1618, E/1618/Corr.1l, E/1818, E/AC.32/2, E/AC.32/6, E/AC. 32/6/Corr.l,
E/AC.32/7, E/AC.32/L.3, E/4C.32/L.L0, E/AC,32/L.41 and E/AC.32/NGO/1)
(centinued) : :

The Cormittee continued consideratian of the draft Convention contained

in Annex I to its first report (E/1618).

Article 26: Refugees not lawfully admitted

Mr, HERMENT (Belgium) said that a provision such as was contained in
article 26 must naturally interest countries like France, Luxembourg and
Belgium, which were particularly exposed te illegal entry by refugees, Early
in the discussions, the French representative had intimated that between four
and five thousand refugees entered France illegally every month. It was true
that the number of clandestine entries into Belgian territory amounted to no
more than three to four hundred a month. But they constituted a real danger,
on both economic and security grounds. Hence, acceptance of the provisions

of article 26 called for sober reflection.

At all events, he would like it to be clearly understocd that the words
"who enters or who is present in their territory without authorization" did
not cover refugees who had gained access to a territory illegally, after
authorization had been refused. Nnr should they cover illegal presence, even

though it had lasted for months or even years.

He was, nevertheless, prepared to accept the provision, so long as it was
understood that it referred only to a very brief stay. - In other words, the
reasons which might be held to justify illegal entry or an unauthorized stay
of three or four days must on no account be recognized as valid for a longer
stay. He also wanted it to be fully understood that the word "penalties"
meent internment only. After all, expulsion was also a penalty, and the
Belgian Government did not wish to be deprived under article 26 of the right to

expel a refugee in such circumstances.



E/iC.32/SRe40
page 5

He also proposed two slight drafting changes affecting the French text

only: in paragraph 1, replace the words "les raisons reconnues valables!" by

"des raisons reconnues valables"; and in paragraph 2, delete the semi-colon

after the word "admission'", and insert it after the words "dans un autre pays".

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) thought that a careful perusal of the text of
article 26 would satisfy the Belgian representative on the points of substance

he had just raised,

The Belgian representative had urged that the penalties mentioned in the
article as not to be imposed on refugees entering without authorization, should
be confined to judicial penalties only. Surely that was precisely what the
article stated, A judlcial penalty, at least as interpreted in the code law
of the Latin countries, was a penalty pronounced by the courts,; not an
administrative penalty, But, in so far as non-admission or expulsion could be
regarded as sanctions, they were in the vast majority of cases administrative

measures, especially where they were applied at very short notice,

The Belgian representative also asked that the provision should not apply
to unauthorized refugees who had been in the territory a long time. But that
was precisely what the text of article 26 stated: "4 refugee .... who

presents himself without delay ....".

Mr. WINTER (Canada) said that article 26 and the succeeding two
articles had been much discussed by the authorities in his country, as under
Canadian law the illegal entry of aliens was punishable by arrest and
deportation. Obviously, as the Belgian and French representatives had said,
there must be some control over iliegal bntnyo His Government was prepared,
however, to accept the article in principle, as the Minister of Immigration had
the discretionary right to consider individval cases, and as the article
stipulated that the refugee must show good cause for his illegal entry or

presence,



E/AC.22/SR.40
page 6

Mr, HERMENT (Belgium) recognized the cogency of the interpretation
given by the French representative; but wished to put on record the
interpretation which the Belgian authorities would like to be given to the

article.,

"Wiﬁﬁ fegard to the illegal presence of a refugee on a given territory,
the case was concelvable of a refugee who had been on foreign soil for a
certain lehgth of time being discovered by the authorities. The moment he was
discovered, -he could present himself to the local authorities, explaining the
reascns why he had taken refuge in that territorv. In such instances, the

text would not necessarily cover the case of prolonged illegal presence,

Mro'JUVIGNY (France) said he would like to clear up a further point,
The Belgian representaiive had'alsé put forward the view that the words
"without authorization! might refer to a refugee who had made application and
been refused authorization, and still persisted in trying to remain in the
country. Such a case was provided for by paragraph 2 of article 26, which
stated that the status of refugees entering a country illegally must be
"regﬁlafized”»' Hence, cases of such refugees wduld require in#estigation,
If, as a result, it was decided for various reasons not to admit a refugee,
and -bthe refugee persisted in trying to remain in the territory, he would no
longer. come under article 26, but under the ordinary national law,.i.eg, the

penalties laid down under the domestic law would be applicabie;

The provisions of paragraphs 1 and 2 of article 26 teken in conjunction
should therefore allay the Belgian representative's misgivings, The reference
to a refugee 'who enters or who is present in their territory without
authofization" covered persons whc, cwing to outside pressure, had been
obliged to enter or re-enter particular countries illegally. Once the cases
ofisuch persons had been examined, they would be either accepted or expelled.
If they were forced to leave, they would not of course be. sent back to the
éountries from which they had escaped; alternatively, if special measures were
taken in regqrd to them, e.g. if they were sent to camps, they wﬁuld no longer

come under the terms of article 25.




E/AC.32/SR.40
page 7

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) thought that the Belgian
representative had been under a misapprehension, as paragraph 1 contained no
indication that a refugee could remain in a country for a period of time and
not be required to present himself "without delay" until he was caught. His
interpretation of the words "without delay" was that the refugee should

present himself to the authorities immediately on entry into a country.

Mr, JUVIGNY (Frahce) thought there was still another reason why his

~ interpretation should be regarded as self-evident, as article 26 now stood.

The first paragraph of the article involved a volunfary'act. A person who
presented himself to the authorities of g éountry'after crossing its frontiers
without authorization, was performing a volunfary act; whereas, in the case
mentioned by the Belgian representative, the act was no longer voluntary, since
the refugee who had entered illegally had been brought before the authorities by
the police who discovered him. The refugee could therefore no longer benefit

by the provisions of article 26.

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) did not.see why, in such circumstances, the
words "who presents himself" need be kept, since they implied that the refugee

was already in the territory.,

The CHAIRMAN quoted as aﬁ example the hypothetical case of a refugee
entering a country with permission to remain there for three months pending
departure overseas. It was quite possible that such a refugee might not be
able to obtain the necessary papers to enable him to depart within the three
months period, and on the expiry of that period he would,.ﬁnder‘paragraph 1 of
article 26, be in the position of a person present in the territory without
authorization, and he should, in those circumstances, present himself without

delay to the authorities.

Mr. WINTER (Canada) thought that it was clear that paragraph 1
referred only to voluntary acts on the part of refugees, as the French
" representative had said., If a refugec presented-himself to the authorities
.invbluntarily5 namely, only when he had been detained, he would naturally come

under the law of the country.



E/Ac.Bz/SR.ho
page 8

Mr. SCHURCH (Switzerland) said that the Swiss federal laws contained
2 provision similar to the pfinciple laid down in the first paragraph'of
_artiéle 26, 4 refugee who had crossed the frontier illegally for feasons_
recoénized as valid was not liable to punishment. Moreover, the Swiss federal
laws did not regard any person assisting him as liable to punishmeht, proﬁided
his motives were above board, The provision was of some importance for

voluntary organizations for aid to refugecs.

Article 26 did not include any such provision, and he thought the omission
should be made good. It wac quite possible that in domestic law, assistance to
a foreigner crbssing a frontier illegally might be regarded a8 a separate’

offence punishable even if the refugee was not,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) thanked the Swiss cbserver for
- noting a possible oversight in the dréfting of the article., He did npt think
that the Committee had considered the point, and he did not suggest that the
article be re-drafted to include it, but that the Swiss observer's comments be
given due attention in the record of the meeting, and he hoped that countries

would take them into consideration,

Mr, JUVIGNY (France) agreed with the United States representative's

remarks,

The CHAIRMAN thought that if the Committee accepted the Swiss

observer!s proposal it might be referred to the Drafting Committee,

Mr, PEREZ-PEROZO -(Venezucla) preferred the United States and French
representatives'! suggestion that the comments of the Swiss observer be recorded

in the minutes of the meeting.,

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) explained that the reason why he had supported
the United States representative's proposal was not that he was opposed to
any mention whatsoever of the matter in the text of the Convention. But it _
would have to be done with the greatest care. It was an entirely new 1ssue,'

and in France the problem of penal responsibility of corporate bodies was an



E/AC 032/81'1-,1"0
page 9

extremely delicate question on which case law was not always concordant.
‘Hence, a provision of any sort on the subject would inevitably raise extremely
difficult problems of interpretation in France. That was the reason why he had

not formally proposed its insertion in the text of the Convention.

If, however, the idea were adopted, two types of assistance by refugee

. organizations must be singled out. He entirely agreed that a refugee
organization should not be penalized for having helped a refugee applying to
it. That was an obvious humanitarian duty. But assistance to refugees
might go beyond the national territory, and in certain circumstahces refugee
ovganizations might literally become organizations for the illegal crossing of
frontiers, He wondered whether it would be in the interests of the refugees
themselves that organizations of the kind, whose activities were likely to come

under very much more general laws, should exist inside national territories.

For those reasons, and in view of the many legal problems which would
inevitably arise, he considered that it would be sufficient to make mention of
the problem in the summary record of the meeting, in the hope that Governments
would take note of the very liberal outlook embodied in the Swigs federal laws
and follow that example,

The CHAIRMAN thought that, if the Committee agreed that the only
action required was to insert the Swiss observer's comments in the records, no

further action need be taken.

It was so agreed.

Mr. HENKIN (United States of imerica) said that the Committee was
under a special obligation to consider the comments of Governments not present,
He disagreed with the comments of the Chilean Government on article 26
(E/AC.BZ/L.LO, page 54), however, as he considered that the article would not
affect refugees adversely, and that there Qas no harm in including‘it even if

it did not have the same application in different countries.

The Committee decided to refer article 26 to the Drafting Committee,




E/AC.32/SR. 40
. page 10

Article 27: Expulsion of réfugees lawfully admitted

The CHAIRMAN pointed ouththat paragraph 1 of the arpicle dealt with
the substance of the 1ssue, paragraph 2 with procedure and paragraph 3 with
the period allowed to refugees to seek legal admlSSlon to another country.

He propesed_therefore-that the paragraphs be cop51dered separately.

Mr, WINTER (Qanada) said that article 27 would not easily prove

. acceptable to his country:pecause-if-ran counter to the provisions of the
Immigration Act and the bpium_and.Narebtic Drugs het, Under the Immigration
Let lunatics and siailarly undesirable persons could be deported; under the
Opium and Nafcotic Drugs Act deportatioﬂ'Was'mAndatofy, - In practice, the law
- was modified to take accounp_of three consideratieﬁe: 'ﬁirst, that the country
~of origin of tﬁe aiien might refuse.to receive him”oﬁ deportation; secondly,
that the punishment might be out of a1l proportion to the offence} and
thirdly, that deportation to another country might éndanger the llfe of the
deportee. The third con31derat10n was covered. by article 28. Seen from the
-p01nt of view of the draft Conventlon, it might of course be con81dered that
refugees who committed offences punishable by deportation WOuld either no longer
be lawfully resident in Canada, or, under paragraph 1 of article 27, would be
expellable on grounds of natlonal security. If sﬁch an interpretation were
not accepted, his Goverpment could not readily cOntemplate the grant to:

refugees of privileges not accorded to ordinary aliens.

The question was of great importance, as it arose ih'respect of many
other articles in the draft Convention. His country had two types of refugees:
those who had entered for a short timei were not naturalized, and were treated
"on a par with other aliens; - And those who were immigrants, His Government
desifed te treat the latter class of refugees ﬁell but it did not coénsider it
p0551ble to glve them better treatment than that acco“deﬂ to 1mm3grants from
countrles euch as the United Kingdom, uhe Unlted States of- hmerica or France.
'tIt desired that refugees should: be assimilated into the oommunlty and should
not remain isolated; when admltted they were given the status of legal
residents within the country and received all the rights and privileges of

their fellow-countrymen, but not any special rights or privileges,



E/AC432/SR. 40
page 11

It had also to be remembered that if special privileges were accorded to
refugees, the effect might well be to foster the adoption of an unfavourable
attitude towards them by other residents of the country in which they sought

refuge., It would be desirable to avoid such a possibilityg

The meaning of the term "public order" might be discussed by the Drafting

Committee.

Mr. HENKIN (United States of lmerica) confessed that his delegation
still felt concern at the use of the term "public order", partly because of its
ambiguity, partly because it feared that it embraced too much. At the same
time, he thought, when the article-had been drafted, it had not been the
intention to prevent the expulsion of refugees for most reasons of general law
applicable to aliens. The intention, however, should have been clearly
expressed, and he considered that a better formula might be found,

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) did not think it feasible either for the
Committee or for national authorities themselves to define the concept of
"public order", Llthough there might clearly be some danger in so general a
notion, the clause was nevertheless a safeguard which contracting Governments
should be allowed to retain. If a refugee were convicted of a fairly serious
offence, his presence might well be considered undesirable. On the other hand,
the political activity of a refugee might also be regarded as undesirable for

reasons of "public ordern,

He felt that it would be useless for the Committee to attempt to define
the term, He would, however, like it to be retained in article 27, It was an
expression to be found in a number of international law treaties, where its

interpretation had always been left to contracting States,

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) said that although lengthy theses had been
written on the concept of public order, it had not yet been clearly defined.

With regard to the observations of the representative of Canada, he would
suggest that article 27 did give implicit satisfaction to them. Article 27,
in fact, stipulated that "the contracting States shall not expel a refugee



page 12

lawfully in their territory save on grounds of national security or publiec
order and in pursuance of a decision reached in accordance with due process of
law", Now, Canadian law, to which the representative of Canada had referred,
did provide for the autcmatic deportation of aliens convicted of specific
offences, That being so, it was open to the courts to pass an additional
sentence of expulsion in such cases. Such action would be a judicial decision
in accordance with the terms of article 27, It might also be the case that
Canadian law authorized or even obliged the administration to take action as a
result of conviction, without the intervention of the court. In such cases,
there was a legal check on the powers of the administration, and such an act

would be "a decision reached in accordance with due process of law'i,

From a praciical standpoint, it was obvious that the authors of article 27
had been anxious that the provisions favoﬁrablé to refugees should not cover
ordinary offences punishable by law, and should nbt confer on ordinary
offenders; who happened to be refugees, rights not even enjoyed by %he countryig
own neticnals, He therefore considered that unless'one tried to read too much
into the provisions of article 27, the fears expressed by the Canadian

represenvative were groundless.

Mr. HENKIN (United Stetes of imerica) said that the Belgian
representative's explanation had ﬁot dispelled his doubts, but had in fect
‘ increased thenm, because of the examples he had'given. It seemed that the term
'public order" could bé used as a prétext for'getting rid of any refugee on the
ground that he'was, for one réasbn'§r énothér, an undesirable person. He
wondered whether it would be éufficient mérely to say "on grounds proviced by

law for the expulsion of aliens",

Mr. PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) did not desire to enter into a discussion
of the definition of the term "public order". As the Belgian and French
representatives had pointed out, it had appeared in various internationel
instruments and gained wide acceptance; it had appeared; for example, in the
Conventions of 1933 and 1938, and in article 29 of the Universal Declaration of

Human Rights“‘


vd.de

page 13

So far as his own country was éoncerned, "public order" was directly
related to the maintenance of the peace and stability of the State., If they
were threatened, the Government was enabled, on grounds of public order, to
take such measures as the suspension of certain constitutional guarantees, the
banning of public meetings, or the imposition of restrictions on movement,

If such measures were taken, they would be applicable to aliens as well as to
nationals, and no exception could or should be made in the case of refugeeéo
In fact, the inclusion of the reference to public order in paragraph 1 of
article 27 could be construed as a warning to refugees not to indulge in

political activities against the State. It was essential that the term should

be retained,

The instances quoted by the Canadian representative came under common
law. Penalties were established for certain offences, and refugees.should
not be given the privilege of special legislation simply by virtue of being

refugees,

Sir Leslie BR\SS (United Kingdom) thought that the grounds for the
deportation of refugees should not be wider than, but exactly the same as, those
for the deportation of other aliens. His Government found it difficult to
accept paragraphs 1 and 2 of article 27, and thought it possible and desirable
to substitute for them something on the lines of article 9 of the draft
Covenant on Human Rights. The adoption of some such phraseoclogy would give
some effect to the proposal of the United States representative that the treat-
ment of refugees should be the same as for aliens generally; it would ensure
that there should be no deportation except in accordance with established law

and procedure; and it would provide necessary safeguards,

Mr, WINTER (Canada) supported the United Kingdom representative!s
suggestion, which he had been about to make himself. Article 9 of the draft
Covenant on Human Rights was more explicit than article 27, and contained

safeguards for refugees not included in the latter.

In reply to the Venezuelan representative, he pointed out that the reasons
for deportation were clearly and explicitly defined in his country's

Immigration isct, and were not left to common law,



E/AC.32/SR. L0
page 14

" Mr., HENKIN (United States of America) was doubtful whether the
substitution of an article from the draft Covenant on Human Rights would be
desirable. When he had said earlier that refugees should be deported only on
the same grounds as other aliens, he had meant that those grounds shouldvbe in
accordance with established law. His main fear was that the term "public
order" might mean much more thén what it appeared to mean on the surface. He
felt that refugees should not be expelled on grounds not specified in‘law, or
because they had become sick or indigent;  they should be expelled only on the
grounds that they had committed crimes, which should be as explicitly.defined as
possible, At ﬁhe same time, they should not be expelled under any provision of
law which permitted'expulsion for reasons such as that they were sick or -
indigent. Hé thought that anh attempt should be made to draft an article

covering such considerations,

Mr. GIRAUD (Secretariat), referring ‘o the suggestion that refugees
should be treated on a par with aliens, pointed out that under existing
international law, aliens enjoyed no safeguards. International Jaw imposed
no obligation on States to expel aliens only on legal grounds. A State could
expel an alien by exercise of its discretionary powers, and because it
considered the alien undesirable., Although certain States did provide some
legal safeguards for aliens, it was not because they were obliged to do so

under international law.

Mr, PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) thought that as the United States
representative questioned the use of the term "public order®, he might be able
to explain the rather similar term "public emergency! used in the United

States of America.

Mr, HENKIN (United States of Lmerica) said that the term '“national
emergency” was applied to an emergency declared as such by the Head of the

State.



E/LC.32/SR. 4O
page 15

He explained that his delegation had not objected to the use of the term
"public order" in article 2, althjugh it .had not fully understood its meaning.
Thé use of the tern in article 27 was differen; héwe?er. as.the question of a
general obligation for the refugee to Conform to measures for the nalntendnce
of publlc ordér was entirely different from penm1tt1ng expulsion of a
refugee on the grounds of public order. if ‘public order" included the coﬁcept
of undesirability. He objected to the use of the term only in its o

" particular application to expulsicn

Mr. WEIS (international Refugee Organization} said that the questlon
of‘expulsion was of the gréatest imndrtance to refugees. The term "public
order” had been used in previdus conven omaJ and, however it was defined, he
considered that in practice it had on the whole tendad to restrict the

A - N N .
expulsion of refugees by comparison with-that of other -ailiens,

Several representatives had said that Ehere-w&s no reasor for granting
special privileges %o refugees. He submitued that there were strong grounds
for doing so, above all the ground that aliéns posseSsiﬁg‘an effective
nationality could return to their count vy of nationality in cases of expulsion,

whereas for a “ef“gee it wac a matver of life and death; as he had no other

country to go too

The tgrm "due prgceés of-law"; used'in paragraph 1L of article 27, was-
applied'to proce§ses, usually juridical bud also acrministrative, attended by
ce}tain safeguards. Safeguards were laid down'in raragraphh 2,  The
terminology in the draft Cdvenant'on Human #:ghfs mane it clear that such
safegﬁards muét be provided by lew. = A more explicit'wording was required in

~Ty

art, 1cl 27; arcvicle ¥ of the Craft Covenanl was. very goneral in scope; but a

f

conventlon on"refugees was requirad to be more detailed and to interpret such

termo as "proced1re" and "balegl ards';

1

Mrs ROBINSON (Israel) noted that from the begiining of the
‘discussions of the Coumitbee in Tolke Succene up b very “eceutly’there had been

no tendency to assimilate refugees %o aliens, but thay, ,uat J,ndenCJ hau now


assimilc.be

E/LC.32/SR.40
page 16

" begun insidiocusly to make itself felt: it was now desired to accord to
refugees the minimum rights accorded to aliens. It was surely not inequitable,
however, to take also into account the fact that no country was prepared to
accept refugees as belonging to it, whereas aliens had their own country of

nationality,

The basic question was whether the Committee proposed to treat the
expulsion of refugees on a par with the expulsion of other aliens, When that
question had been decided, the further question would arise, in what respects
the refugee should be assimilated to aliens and in what respects not. There
were three grounds laid down in article 27 on which contracting States might
consider the expulsion of refugees. In the first case, inasmuch as a State
had a right to require good behaviour of all persons resident in it, it had

good ground, subject to certain reservations, for assimilating refugees to

. other aliens. It was to be noted that article 2 required them to conform to

the laws and regulations of the country sheltering them.

In the second case, it had to be remembered that considerations of
national security and public order were interpreted differently in different
countries. In the case of a narrow interpretation, however, there could be no

argument in favour of treating refugees differently from other aliens,

The third case was different, and there should be a gfeat distinction
between the treatment of aliens in general and the treatment of refugees,
The stage had now been reached in social legislation when social cases could be
spoken of, and the great problem was; who was responsible for the social cases
represented by the refugees, In the case of aliens, the answer was their own
country; in the case of refugees, the answer was no country. If refugees
were not nationals in the political sense of the country where they were
resident, however, they were in a moral sense, It seemed to him that countries
should accept refugees as human beings, with all the infirmities and
weaknesses inherent in the human condition, and treat them accordingly when they

offended against national laws.



E/iaC.32/SR4 40
page 17

The question of guarantees for refugees was one which provoked serious
conflict with national legislation, He sympathized with the remarks of the
representative of the International Refugee Organization, but felt that
countries would not accept the idea of 4 review of their laws or administration
merely to meet the special case of refugees. Countries must be accepted as
they were, and the Committee should reconcile itself to the poeition and have
confidence that countries where the rule of law reigned would do their best for
refugees. The only kinds of guarantees that could be secured would not be
those involving a change in the administrations or constitutions of countries,

but merely extensions of existing guarantees,

He suggested therefore that paragraphs 1 and 2 of article 27 be combined,
and that the material problem of the grounds for expulsion and the procedural
question be dealt with together; that the grounds for expulsion be listed; -and
that the necessary provisions be inserted regarding procedure with all due
process of law., Even so; something would stiil be owed to the refugees, and it
was impossible not to foresee that refugees would still be in a worse position
than aliens., The solution lay in paragraph 3 of article 27, The principles
enunciated would be clear and precise, would take consideration of refugees,
not of aliens, and would give guarantees, If the Committee feached an
agreement on the basic concepts, the Drafting Committes could redraft the

article in such a way as to eliminate ambiguities.

Mr, JUVIGNY (France) said he had been deeply impressed by the

brilliant statement made by the Israeli representative.

He admitted the contention of the United States representative that the
noticn of public order might siir up unpleasant memories, since it was on that
notion tnat certain totaiitarian States had based their claim to absolute
discretionary powers not only in respect of refugees and aliens, but also with

regard to their own nationals,

Howewer, in countries governed by the prineiple of the supremacy of law,

an administrative and judicial case-law had been developed such as enabled



E/LCs32/SR.00 ..
page 18 : -

Jurisvs. and even public opinion to know what was meant by !public order¥#, For
example, French legislation relating to the deportation of aliens provided for

a specific appsal procedure through an Appeals Board under the authority of

the Minister of the In%terior, That purely administrative procedure was in no
wey discretionary; since aliens had the right of resort, if necessary, %o

courts of appeal cn administrative matters just as had French nationals. The
notion of public order had thus been defined and limited and the retention of the

term,. Lo vhiclr the Frensh Governmen’ was for certain reasons atbtached; involwved

no- risk for refugees, hs a matter of fact, the latter were in the sams
situation in relation to the notion of /piblic order as were French nationals
w1uh zegard o police powers whiich. were, 1n vertain cases, based on the same

otLpno

Mro HENKIN (Unibed States of hmerlca) nobed that; contrary to the
impre551on he had formed in ear] ier dlscusglon in the Committee, the term
"publwc order” , which in Briti sh and jmerican law was more or Less cquivalent

to‘”public poliby”, was not 50 understood in certain other countries,

The rep“esentaq_in of ¥anea¢ela, wiho had implied tua+ ipublic order! in
b;s cownury meant something.related to natlonal emergency, could feecl
agourcd hthat in the opinion of the United States delegabion; the requirements
of national emergency vicre taken into account in the term Ynational security!,
There was no intentlon cf excluding the possibility of expulsion in circum—
stances such as the representative of Venezuela had had in mind. 1t had
been argued that the provisions of laws relating “o public order applied %o
nationals as well as Vo aliens, Thnere was; however, the important difference
that nationals, unlike aliens, wers not liable ‘o expulsion on such grounds,
He was glad to hear that. wague though the cencept of.public order was, it was
not liable bto esbuse,. at leact ,n France, Belgium and Venezuela. He would
make no invidious remarks about the possibility of a less llhe*ax application
of the tem in other countries, but would merely point to the importance of

defining legel notions exactiy in a legal instrument.

.
a



E/4C.32/SRoL0
page 19 ’

He therefore proposed the following text, which he hcped would be acceptable
to the countries whnse legislation was based on the concept of public ovder, and
which would take note of the distinction ably drawn by the representative of

Israel between different grounds for expulsinn:

"The Contracting States shall not expel a refupgee lawfully in their
territory save on grounds established by law which relate to national

security or are based on the commission of illegal acts,"

That formula would permit the expulsion of a refugee who had committed any serious
" crime but would not cover what the representative of Israel had called "sncial

cases',

The CHAIRMAN was not altogethzr satisfied with the words: ‘''based on
the commissicn of illegal acts', I1legal acts ranged from riding bicyclesz the
wrong way on footpaths, to the gravest of crimes., It might be better to change
the term "public order" to "public safety", which was also a vague term, and
~would fail to cover extreme cases on both sides, but would not; like the wording
prOpoéed by the representative of the United States of America, cover both
extremes and permit the deportation of any refugec who had committed the

smallest illegal act,

Mr, WEIS (International Refugee Organization) had understood that the
United States proposal was to be taken in combination with article 9 of the
draft Covenant on Human Rights, which provided that an alien could be expelled
only for illegal acts established as ground for expulsiong  it was unlikely
that such acts as riding & bicycle on a footpath would be legally established

as grounds for expulsion in any country,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) regretted that he kad not made
his proposal sufficiently clear, He had not, .f course, intended that any
illegal act should provide grounds for expulsion., He had intended to make a
* double safegnard by providing, first; that grounds for expulsion must be grounds

established as such by law, and, secondly, that "social cases" muet be excluded,



E/AC,32/SR.40
page 20

_ With regerd to the Chairman's suggestion, in the United States of America
the term "public safety" was closély related to the term "national security",

and could therefore nct be made to cover even such seriouc coffences as larceny.

. The CHAIRMAN thought that *%e formula proposed by the United States
representative would in certain countries make any expulsion impossible, On
the other hand, in countries where expulsions were at the discretion of the
Minister of Justicé pf‘his équivalent, and ﬁhore were ne other legal provisions;
a refugee éentenced to eXpulsion would have no redress at all, Where expulsion
was not automatically coupled with various punishments, the Minister of Justice
must decide in each case whether the punishment for a crime shculd also entail

expulsion,

Mr, HERMENT (Belgium) vointed out that expilsion being a royal
prercgative in Belgium, the law did’hot specify in what cases it might take

place,

He wondercd whether the discussion was nct animated by a epirit of mistrust
of Governmentise After all, the States which would sign and ratify the
Conventicn would undcubtedly have the intention of according reasonably

favourable treatment %o refuzees,

He would like to urge_ﬂhat the long accepted notion of public order should
not be set aside, for, if the Ad hoc Committee departed from established case
law and the accepted interpretation, far from improving matters; it might run
the'risk of producing a less satisfactoryvalternative, Powers of expulsion
should be left to Governments, even in cases the circumstances of which could
not be foreseen, since such might in fact arise, £ that were not done, the
article would only be accepted with a number of reservations which would

-deprive it of all value.

Mr, JUVIGNY (France) feared that the proposal of the United States
reprcsentative was'partly inSpired by the desire to put an end to a discussion

that need never have arisen.,



E/iC.32/SR.40
page 21

There were laws in existence in which threats or actions prejudicial to
public crcer were explicitly cited as grounds for expulsion., It was naturally
net the intention of the Committee that States should be required to alter

their legislation on so important a subject, especially at the present time.

Accordingly, whatever formula was adopted, the notion of public order
would inevitably raise its head in those code law countries where it was
traditicnally accepted. Any other formula the Committee might endeavour to

evolve would therefore run the risk of proving illusory,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) thought that since it appeared
that in certain countries there was a provisicn of law that an alien could be
expalled on grounds of public order, the only soluticn to the present
difficulties of the Committee would be to retain the present text of the first
paragraph of article 27, and perhaps to add thereto a number of cspecific
exclusions, stating, for example, that a refugee might not be expelled on

grounds of indigency or ill health,

The CHAIRMAN thought that since such exclusions were already provided
for in the draft Covenant on Human Rights, it would be undesirable for the
Committee to suggest to the Governments signatory to the Covenant and to the

Conventicn that it expected them to evade the provisicans af the Covenant.

The form of words employed in paragraph 1 of article 27 had appeared in
former conventions, and he felt that Governments would be reluctant to accept
any that differed greatly from it, The criticisms put forward had not canvinced
him cof the necessity of changing wording te which certain traditions and certain
regular interpretations in Courts of law had beccme attached, and which ta the
best ¢f his knowledge had never given rise to any public criticism or public

debate,

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) was prepared to accept the intrcduction of some
restriciions In article 27 on the lines suggested by the representative of the

United States of America.



E/AC.32/SR.1,0
page 22

He wonld, however, like to warn the Committee that if restrictions were
intreduced limiting the scope of the clause to two or three categories of case,
certain jurists would interprét the text a_contrario as éllowing the
possibility ol expelling refugees for all the reasons except thése thus
spec¢ified. That was certainly not the aim of the Committee. It was, in any

case, always uadesirable to leave a- text open to interpretation_a_contrario.

If, on the other hand, a country really had the intention of expelling
refugees becauvse, by reason of their state of heaith, Ior 1nutance, they were
a burden on ths public purse, such a country would of necess¢ny be obliged,
when ratifying thq Convention, to make reservations with regard to the article
relating to public relief. To formulate reservations with regard to article 18
did not of cowrse, strictly speaking, amoun? to the same thing as making
reservations with regard to article 27, yet the dividing line between the two

types of reservation was not very clear,

In short, he considered that however vague the notion of public order might
be, it did; at least under the case law of certain countries, offer greater
safeguards fcr refugees than would be given by a hastily drafted formula which
would not cover all possible casés and wﬁich, moreover, would lend itself to

interpretation a _countrario. -

- The CHAIRMAN observed that paragraph 1, which had been repeatedly
adopted in other Conventiops and had now again been the object of study by
Governments; had called forth cnly twe comments from them, The only possible
reply to the Canadian comment (E/AC.!'2/L.LO, page 55) was that the term "public
order! would certainly cover the deportétion of aliens convicted under the Opium
and Narcctic Drugs Act. In view of the public injury which resulted from
traffic in drugs, there could be no possible objection to that interpretation.
The onlJ other comment was that of the Australian Government (E/:703/Add.7,page 3)
which suggested that restriction of grounds for expulsion to the ground of
national security and public order might result in preferential treatment for
refugees, Such preferential treatment was exactly what the Committee had

intended, The cpinion of the Ccmmittee was precisely that the refugee should



E/AC.32/SR.40
page 23

not he expelled, for example, on grounds of mental or physical disability.
Those two crmments therefore provided insufficient reason for arousing the
suspicions of Governments with regard to the intentions of the Ccmmittee by

adopting a modification of the form of wards which had served well since 1920.

Mr. ROBINSWN (Israel) noted that the debate had narrowed to a sharp
division between what might be called the conservative element and those who
wished for some change in paragraph 1. Speaking for those who wished to make
some change, he thought that the objection of the representative of France
might be met by including a reference to article 20, The essence of the
argument was, whether it was necessary to include some guarantee to exclude "social
cases" and whether artiele 20 would provide that guaranfee. That was a matter
for interpretation, but he thought that the intention of the Committee would be

made sufficiently clear by such a reference,

He therefore suggested that the Committee accept tentatively the present
formulation of paragraph 1 and ask the Drafting Committee t¢ seek a farmulation

for the exclusion of "social cases'.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) said he was prepared to agree to a new paragraph
being inserted in article 27 to deal with the social cases which had been

mentioned in the discussion.

Sir Leslie BRASS (United Kingdom) thought it should be possible for
the Committee to agree provisionally to the combined suggestions of the re-
presentativesof Israel and France and to refer the question of finding a

satisfactory formula to the Drafting Committee,

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) thought that the Committee should first decide
whether the article should be modified or not, If the Committee decided that
the article should be left as it stnod, it would still be desirable te refer it
to the Drafting Committee.



E/AC.22/SR.L0O
page 2

The CHAIRMAN, weplying = 2 queshion vy Mr, WELS (Internatioral
Refugee Organization), said that the words "due precess, which appeared in
both the first and the second paragraphs of article 27, would be discussed

when the Committse consideved the setond paragraph,

Mr. CHA (China) thought that the Committce was ready to take a
decision on .several questions. ‘There was the ‘question of whether to combine
the first and';qcuud paragrepls, wihich the representative of the United Kingdom
wished to do in urdar to employ the werds in article § of the draft Covenant
on Human Rights; there were also the questions raised with regard te the
terms "public cider™ and "due process."  The Chinesc delngation could accept
the proposal to combine the first two paragraphs, if the majority of the
Committec wished teo do so. He would prefer, however, to retain the concept of
"public order’; which was Important in China where manners and customs differed
greatly from those of othor countries; and also differsd from one region to
another, He himself came from a mouatainouc aree where husbands were obliged
to travel great.distances to work, and were abie to s ﬁeii their wives only once
in three years, Wives genereslly remained oxtccm’lr fa 1*hiul o their absent
husbands, and ii' any oae were to receive a visit from a stranger it would cause
a considerable seusation, The conceplt of public order was importent in relation

to such peculiaritizs.cf circurstance and cusbom,

The concept of due process, famijiar to theose who understood Anglo-American

~

common law, would be easily acceptable tc the Chinese delegatina,

Mre. JUVIGNY (France) remarked that the observation of the representative
of China showed whatv diffeient interpretatiovs mxght 5@ giveil to the notien of
public order, The example mentioned by the Chinese xepreseq aJive would, in

France, come within the field ol private iaw.

The CHAIRMAN thought that tiece would be gensral agreement that, owing
to differences of custom, what would te questicns of public order in cne country
would not te in ancther. For ewemple, illegal dgistillation of spirits was in
some countries merely s tiscnl provlem, but inm others a problem of public order,

.



E/AC.32/SRi40
page 25

Again, to take the example referred to.in the Canadian cemment, thére might
possibly - although he: hoped not = be countries where it was considered to be a

man's private affair if he chose to poison himself with drugs. It would be

. ».impossikle therefore to define precisely questions of public:order for all -

countries.

He felt that the Commlttee mlght dlupatch 1ts bu31ness more rapldly if it
referred the questlon to the Draftlng Committee, on the understanding, not only
that a second reading would be given to the article, but also that the first
reading was merely adjourned, so that all representatives would have the

opportunity to discuss the matter fully twice. .

~ Mr. PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) accepted the Chalrman's suggestion, but
felt at the same time that a vote should be taken on the retention of the term
"publlc order", If the matter was left to the Drafting Committee and if it.
decided ton exclude the term, the present discussion might be renewed at the

second reading. ...

Sir Leslie BRASS (United Kingdom)'felt.that'the'ihclusioﬁ or exclusion
of the term "puhlic order" should be left entirely to the Drafting Cemmittee.
If the vote resulted in a directive to the Drafting Committee to employ the term,
it would be precluded from seeking, and possibly finding, ‘a satisfactory solution
without it, '

The CHAIRMAN agreed that it would be preferable to.give no directive
to the Drafting Committee, o ‘

. Mr. JUVIGNY (France) recognlzed that the Chalrman was actuated by the
des1re to leave as much latltude as pOSSlble to the Committee and to-the
Draftlng Commlttee, but in view of the deadllne the Committee had set for
conclu51on of its work, he thought 1t inadvisable to provoke a- serles of
discussions on the questlon and therefore considered that the Commlttee.ehould
take an immediate vote, first, on whether a new paragraph should be added.

indicating those social cases which should not be regarded as covered by the



E/AC.32/5R:40
page 26

notion’ of M"public order", such cases to he defined hy the Drafting Committee,
and, - secondly, on whether the term "public order" should be retained in' "~
paragraph 1 of article 27, He cmsidered that a decision by the Committee on
those two questions might be of assistance to the Drafting Committee in its work.

Mr. GIRAUD (Secretarlat) observed that “social cases“ were dealt with
in a special artlcle, on which a State might submlt reservatlons. At all
events he did not belleve that "social cases" came withln the coucept of

"publlc order"

Mr. JUVIGNY (France), agreeing with the representative of the
Secretariat, said he had only accepted that possibility on the assumption that
social reasons might be 1ncluded under "public order" in the legislation of
certaln States. ' Such was not the case in French law, and France had recently

admitted a large number of refugees belonglng to the "hard core"

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) said he had intended to take the same line as
the French representative and, accordingly, he saw no necessity to include such

a paragraph in artlcle 27,

i

. The CHAIRMAN feared that the Committee might be considering the
‘inclusion ‘in an international convention of a provision which appeared to
suggest that "social reasons" were a question of public order, To make an
express reservation with- regard to the terms "national securlty" and "public

order! might oonstltute a dangerous precedent.

Mr, HENKIN (United States of America) felt that since there was
obv1ous agreement that "social reasons" should not be grounds of expu181on, the
only question which remained was whether to prov1de spe01fically for such ,
exclu31on, or to let the records of the Committee 1ndicate that 1nterpretation

of "publlc order" " He felt that the Draftlng Commlttee should take that } f

dec151on.



F/iC.32/SR.40
page 27

The CHAIRMAN put tc the vote the proposal that a specific reservation

with regard to "sccial cases" be included in paragraph 1 of article 27,

The proposal was rejected by 5 votés to 2 with 4 abstentions.

Mr, HENKIN (Unitedastétes_of;America), explaining his abstention, said
that he did not, think the Committee shiuld decide how the Drafting Committee was
to express an idea on which all were agreed. He felt that no vote should have
been taken; and that it was still open to the Drafting Committee to find a form

of words expressing the intentions of the Committee,
Mr., WINTER (Cnnada) agreed that nc vote ought to have been taken.

The CHAIRMAN said that tﬁe Drafting Committee, and memters of the
Committee present at ils deliberations, would not be precluded from making any

proposals they wished.

- Mr, HEBMENT (Belglum) :;saild he had understood that the precise effect
of the veote that had been taken was: to prevent the Drafting Committee from

including such a paragraphi. -

Mr, GIRAUD (Secretariat) said that the policy to be adopted should
nevertheless be decided; when an indigent alien was expelled he was returned

to his country of origin, but that could not be done in thé case of a refugee.

The CHAIRMANtexplaLnea that wﬁile-thé Drafting Committee would receive
no express orders to find'  form of wérds for the exclusion of "social cases',
‘any member who wiched to take up the ‘question would be able to do so. The

result of the vote was rio more thrn a‘guiding directive.

Mr.. HERMENT (Belgivm) thojught that the Drafting Committee could only

deal with an article whieh had been‘expressly referred to it for redrafting.

Mr, ROBLNbUN (Tsrael\ telb that the result of the Jotnng was incon-

'clu31ve, since alJ those wnon lee hlmaelf had vot ed against the proposal had



7

E/AC,32/8R.:h0
page 28

done so; nst because they did not wish to exclude "social cases", but because
theyfthought'that such cases were already sufficiently excluded by the wording
of article 27 or article 20. So long as'any uncertainty remained in the minds
of those who had voted for the proposal as to whether articles 20 and 27 ‘
guaranteed the exclusion of "social cases", the question could still be raised

in the Drafting Committee,

Tﬁe CHAIRMAN hoped that the Committee could accept the view of the
representative of Israel, He felt that the work of the Committee had gained
from the fact that in the past its directives to the Drafting Committee had not
been unduly strict.

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) accepted the view of the Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN suggested that the question raised with regard to the
term "public order" ke referred to the Drafting Committee and that no vote be
taken in the Committee. He further suggested that the Committee proceed to
conéider paragraph 2 of article 27, which provided for remedies against decisions

%akeﬁ.

It was so agreed.

Sir Leslie BRASS (United Kingdom) said that, as stated in the United
Kingdom comment on paragraph 2 of article 27 (E/AC.32/L.LO, page 56), the
deportation of aliens was a matter for the personal decision of the Secretary
of State. The Secretary of State was, however, directly responsitle to
Parliament, which was quick to criticize any appearance of harshness, Public
opinion was also perpetually on the alert; An alien under threat of deportation
could communicate with his friends, with his legal advisers, and with members of
Parliament, who could make representations on his behalf and visit the Home
Office. If the alien was in prison, which of course in many cases he would not
be, he would be precluded from visiting the Home Office in person, but could
avail himself of all the other methods of making representations., He could also

apply for habeas corpus.



E/AC.32/SR.40
page 29

Paragraph 2 presented a difficulty, because it provided for the alien or
his representatives to appear personally before the Secretary of State, Every
method of making representations was open to him under English law except that

chosen in the draft Convention,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) felt sure that the procedure for
making representations to which the United Kingdom representative had referred
did not begin at the level of the Secretary of State, though the final decision
might be taken by him. While it was understandable that the Secretary of State
could not grant a personal interview to every refugee threatened with expulsion,
perhaps it might be possible in view of the scope of the term "competent
authority" for some other competent authority to grant a hearing to the refugee.
If such an interpretation proved acceptable in the case of the United Kingdem,
it might at the same time meet the needs of the refugee in other countries.

If on the other hand it proved impossible to make such an arrangement, the
United States delegation would like te see the words "in accordance with the
established law and procedure of the country" deleted, if those words could be
interpreted to mean "except where the established law and procedure of the
country provide that there shall be no hearing", If that was not the meaning'

of those words, they could be retained in the hope of reaching a compromise,

Sir Leslie BRASS (United Kingdom) felt that such a compremise might
be reached by the Drafting Committee with the help of the appropriate passages

in the draft Convention on Human Rights,

The CHAIRMAN approved the suggestion of the United Kingdom

representative.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) requested that the Drafting Committee take the
French Government's comment inteo account and substitute the phrase "with regard

for" for the phrase "in accordance with',

The CHAIRMAN thought that the comment of the Austrian Government, which
also referred to paragraph 2, could be covered by a remark in the report of the

Committee.



E/AC.32/SE,40
page 30

armm n——ar

- - The CHAIRMAN nnted:that the-cﬁmments,of_thg:Chilean and United Kingdom

Governments ¢ontained refersnces t¢ payagraph 3.

Sir Leslie BRASS (United Kingdom)'said that the United Kingdrm

Government chjected to.the wording rather than to the . substance of paragraph 3.

It was obvious that if. the travel document of a refugee. returnable to anovther
country *ad almost expired, ‘he couvid not be given the Same opportunity to find
another country willing %n receive. bim.as a refugee whose travel document was

-still valid for a considerable perluaq.l-Tne profiem was e of drafting only.

It was agreed to refer rar agraph 3 of article 27 to_the Drafting CcanTJee,

. . . . - PR
it . R PR

Article 26:  Prohibition ¢f ‘expulsion to tervitory wieie the life and freedom
ofa refugee is threatened. :

e

r"he CHAIRMAN drcw autentlon tc the oHservatJOns of uhe Uﬁ¢u9d Kingdom

Government on art1c1e 28 (E/AC 32/L,h05 page )7)

' giv Lesiie BRASS:(ﬁnited'Kingddm) said he did nob wish to go again over
ground é&%é}ed ét %He‘firbi session, = The difficulty was simply that . the United
King&bﬁ Government, did not know exactly how to deal with' cases where a refugee
was disturbing the public order of the United Kingdom. ' He referred not to
ordinary crimes; but to such avuiviﬁﬁes as incit ting dwsnv‘ r. In such cases,
without the declaration of a utate of eme*gency, the ncesence of a véfugac might
still be deemed h;ghly unde irable3 The Unlued &! nguum Gove ;mmen* had no thought
of acting harshiy in such coges and . loped indsed that the mere existence of the
power te expel a man making trouble might serve to keep his behaviour within
reasonable boundsa Every assistance would be provided %o enable such a refugee
to enter anothe: "ounbry even th tie oxtent zdf"helping him»te’ebtain an entry
permit, No deception 3f course wonld bé prachtised cn other’ cdintries; ' the
position would be fully explainéé;‘hﬁt {4 might happen that such an individnal

L

~would be nore at home in some JunPr camtry. I however all the effcrts of the

[



E/AC.32/SR,40
page 31

Government to obtain permission for a refugee to enter another country proved
unavailing, a provision making it illegal to expel him might prove embarrassing.
The power to expel him-would not of course be employed if it would endanger his
life, but if the persecution to which he would be subjected in his country of
origin was not very Serious, the Government of the country where he had taken
refuge might feel a little more inclined to send him there if he refused to

.mend his ways and could not find any other country to receive him,

: - He' wondered whether any other Governments felt the same difficuifygb. The

United Kingdom Government.had not as yet taken any final qecision; but it felt
that to deprive itself entirely of the power to depért a refugee in'such_,

- special circumstances would be a serious step. It should be recollecied that

-under article 2 a refugee owed duties to the country of hospitality.

Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) thought that the problem to which the United
Kingdom representativé had referred was a real one., It was the prohlem of a
_socially'dahgerous individual still legally entitled to liberty. - He understood
that under United Kingdom law such an individual, once he had served a prison

sentence, retained unimpaired his power to do more evil,

He wondered whether the solutionjmight not be to introduce into- article 28

. something on the lines of the seccnd sentence of paragraph 3 of article 27.

He realized that the United Kingdem Government would be unable to accepﬂ-such a
proposal unless its legislation provided for the "internal measures" referred to,
‘but even so it might provide a solution for other countries faced with the same

problem,

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) was sure that the United Kingdom
representative would not wish to impair the principle of article 28, He felt
_that it would be highly undesirable to suggest in the text of that article that
there might be cases, even highly exceptional cases, where a man mighf Be seht

to death or persecution.

Phe United Kingdem representative might be able to find a form of words

‘that, while recognizing the principle of erticle 28, would cover such'exéépﬁional



E/Ac 52/5Re 16
‘pdge 32

cases as he. had. referred to? but hb_

made,

representativa of Israel, though it

Governmentu d d vic

- Mire SCHﬁRCh (Switzerland) eaid that his Governmenﬁ,haq_gi

applied'ihewpfinciple
Buu

eyceptional cwrcum

procedureo

to pro ceed to a couutr

Federa; uovprun

+
gha

mient easll:

Theru would be no objection

"

t specifisally give up in

y'find itgeif

was giad that 0o fermal

to accept ng the

laced ﬁh

Lxin]

pﬁauo a1-”

e S

uad beeq

‘appeared UINecéssary, sinsé all #lehbs which
- "“}_‘,“.e $ were T e
article 28 were n“turadly':eeerved,

1 t* mes

ted in that article and that it had nc Xsagon to modify

the Swiss 1overnmenb wished 1o reserve Lhu Tight in quite
ances to exmel an undesiratle alien, even -if hs wes unabile
‘other than the oné from which e had fﬁed; singe 'the

at ‘thére wisiaéother

means of gett;ng ri i of an alien who had seriously’ compromisiéd himsglee i
.o Im aﬂd*thn he'prasumed that the article did not mean “hat d'%fng "¢ Who
reported to vhe aub 1""*J".t:i.és at the frontier of a country shcald he aﬁm‘tbed

{ s . > '
solely uerauge hé could not be returned to a country-whére-hls live? w uln be
threatened, In nis'unde“staﬁding,'article'28 contermed UQJy:rQLhﬁeeg 1&mfully

re51denn in a counbvy and nct th05° who avleed for admmﬁs.un-o$eenueredrthe

count;y w1tnout ait

Switzerland mlght make it inmpess

all, despite thelr desire tc receive as many s o

Mre ROB IthW (T

"ﬁaswthat'in’some “1xcu

"returned £o his country of orizin, -

remedy in cases

<send him back.td the couniry vihere death awaite

weuld be able to find some other meacs of preventing -him berag a.nu1

_,
D

vwhere an

sociely.
The Swiss obscrver
application of article

agreed that articlc 28

and those who were

individual was

forization,

1
§ [N

1)

’

anzes the

ibie for the

A
N
P

in extradrdina

™

i'e

y38iblie

e

thought %hat

greatest possible evil for

7
Ve

‘Goverrments

a public ¢anGe

s

3

AN S LY

deral avitioritie

¢ 15 be avle o

s date

g tosacceph them

E

the basjc idea behlng: astacle 28

a refrigaee - WRS to be

sooK: for sonme

“butthey were not to

Perhaps-tae Committee
. * . 1 BRI S

22 to

was apparently und2r a misapprebension wit’: r¢gard to the
8. In the discussions at the first session 1t bad been
referred both te refugees legelly resident im. A country

giat:ter agylam #- -

Luamanitasian voen o8-

Ar DAL ently the



E/AC.32/SR. 40
" page 33

Swiss Government was prepared to accept the provisions of the article with
regard to lawfully resident refugees but not to those entering illegally and
granted asylum. He feared that the Swiss Government might find its inter-
pretation in conflict with the general feeling which had prevailed in the

Committee when it had drafted the article,

Mr, WEIS (International Refugee Organization) wished to add to the
remarks of the representative of Israel only that article 28 meant exactly what
it said, It imposed a negative duty forbidding the expulsion of any refugee
to certain territories but did not impose the obligation to allow a refugee to

take up residence.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) considered that any possibility, even in
exceptional circumstances, of a genuine refugee, that was to say, a perscm
coming under the well-pondered definitions contained in article 1, teing
returned to his country of origin would not only be absolutely inhuman, tut was

ccntrary'to the very purpose of the Convention,

Reference to the definition of "refugee" in article 1 would suffice to
show how psychological factors had been taken into account even in a legal text,
To take such factors into consideration in a definition, on the one hand, and
to allow for the possibility, even in exceptional circumstances, of returning a

refugee to his country of origin, on the other, were obviously quite contradictory,

He was reluctant to encourage members of a technical committee to go outside
the field of law; but he would point out that there was no worse catastrophe
for an individual who had succeeded after many vicissitudes in leaving a country
where he was being persecuted than to be returned to that country, quite apart

from the reprisals awaiting him there.

Mr, HENKIN (United States of America) welcomed the statement of the
French representative, since article 28 applied particularly to countries into
which illegal entry wes easy. Its sole purpose was to preclude the forcible

return of a refugee to a country in which he feared both the persecution from



E/iC.32/SR. 40
page 34

which he had fled and reprisals fcr his attempted escape; as the United States
of America were not so geographically situated as %o ‘receive many illegal
entrants, the support of the representatives of Belgium and France for the

present wording of thé article was particularly welcome.

The CHATRMAN reminded the Committee that Denmark was also a country
of first reception and ‘that it was easy to reach one of its 485 islands with
their enormous coastline in a rowing boat, Still, he felt that, even if the
work of the Committee resulted in the ratification by a number of countries of
article 28 alone, 1t would have been worth while, He himself would regret
any changesrin the wording but suggested that it be left to the Drafting,
Committee to decide whether to seek a compremise which would safisfy the
objectiéns of the United Kingdbm representative without affecting the “

principle, or whether to adopt the suggestion of the representative.of Israel,

It was _so agreed.

Article 30: Co-operation of the national auvthorities with the Unifted Nations

The CHATRMAN, noting that 4rticle 29 had been disposed of at the
previous meeting, czlled atitention to article 30 and the relevant United States
observations (E/AC°32/L,QO, page 59).

Mra HENKIW (United Statés of America) thought that the Committee in
drafting article.BO had been ﬁesitant to bind Contracting States too definitely
to co-operation with the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, - Since
however, the Economic and Social Council had recognized the important link
between the provisions of thev Convention and the functions of the High

‘Commissioner,'there was no reason for that hésitanoyc - Paragraph 6 of the
preamble to the draft Convention Relating to the Status of Refugees, as approved
by the Council (E/1818), read "Considering that the High Commissioner for
Refugees will be called upon to supervise the application of this Convention,

and that the effective implemmtotirm ¢l ‘hig Convortirn d-w=ends on the full



E/4Cy32/SR40
page 35

coeoperétion of States with thé High Cpmmissioner and on a wide measure of
internatioﬁal co-operation". He hoped that that link would be recognized
when the General Assembly approved the statute of the High Commissioner's

Office.

~ The amendment proposed in the United States comment was therefore designed
to remove the hesitant tone of article 30, One slight modification was
required in the amendment as contained in document E/AC.32/L.40, since in the
deliberations of the Council it‘héd been suggestsd that it was inappropriate to
speak of the successor to a functionary who was on the point of taking office.
The words "or any successor agency" in the amendment to paragraph 1 of article 30
should therefore be replaced by the words "or any other agency" and the words
oy any successor agency" in paragraph 2, by the words "or any other appropriate
agendy"{ ‘With those changes no doubt would be cast on the longevity of the High
Commissionerts Office, and furthermore, if the Convention remained in force for
a long period, it would be open to the Contracting States to designate any other

office they wished to make the reports referred to in paragraph 2.

Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) supported the United States amendment ¢n the
underétanding that it would be subject to further change if the High Commissicner's

terms of reference were modified in the General Assembly.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) saw no objection to accepting the wording just
proposed by the United States representative, But he thought it would be
preferable to substitute the phrase "in the requisite form" for the phrase "in
the form prescribed", since the latter might suggest that the High Commissioner
had some powers vis-i-~vis Sfates, whereas the intention was merely to ensure
that States would submit the information supplied in a manner sufficiently

uniform to facilitate the work of the High Commissioner'!s Office.

Mr. HENKIN (United States of America) found the suggestion of the French
representative acceptable, The word "prescribed" had been employed since it was
in the original text of article 30, The matter would be left to the Drafting
Committee,



E/iC.32/SR.40
page 36

Mr, HERMENT (Belgium) regarded as somewhat infelicitous the provision
that Contracting. States should "undertake to co-operate .... in the function of
supervising the applioation of ithe provisions of this Convention" and suggeeted
the substitution of eome such phrase as,"undertake to facilitate the work of the

High Commissioner!s Office",

Mr. HENKIN (Unlted States of America) suggested that that matter also
could be left to. the Draftlng Commltwen

Artlole 30 as a whole was referred to the Drafting Committee..

Articles 31-40:

-Mr., ROBINSUN (fsreel) thought that ‘the nornal procedure of con51der1ng
,artlcles first in the Commlttee, then in the Drafting Commlttee, and then again .
in ‘the Commlttee, could be abandoned An the case of artlcles 31—h0 whlch did
-not affect the substance of the document as a whole and were concerned with

matters more or less habltual in 1nternatlonal conventlons.

Mr., HENKIN (United States of hmérica) thought that there could be no
obgectlon to the suggestion of the representatlve of Israel except with regard

to the articles on which comments had heen submitted, notably article 36,

Sir Lesli¢ BRASS (United Kingdom) Hoped that article 31, on which the
United Kingdom Government had commented, could be considered first hy the

Committee,

,.The.CHAIRMAN felt in view of the United Kingdombreouest that article 31

~ should be considered by the Committee immediately.

It was ‘8o ggreed.

Sir Leslle BRASS (Unlted Kingdom) said that the purport of the United
Kingdom comment on artlcle 31 was that his.Government would prefer a text for

that article based on the prlnolple that ratification of or accession to the



E/ACo32/SR, 40
page 37

Convention implied that a State was already in a pesition to give effect to its
provisions, He had no further observations to make and thought it unnecessary
at present to press for an alternative form, but wished to draw attention to

the matter to which his Goverament attached much importance.

Mr. JENKIN (United States of America) thought that there would be no
advantage in taking any decision in the Cummittee; since the matter must be
considered again in the General Ascembly in any case, It was a question which

arose with regard to every interrnational convention. ;>

It _was agieed to_refer articles 31, 32 and 33 to the Drafting Cormittee.

lézé\Mr, HENXIN (United States of America) noted that when article 54 had
been drafted the Committee had thought that the Economic and Social Council
would be the last hady of the United Nations to revise the draft Convention.
Since that would not be the case, he saw little point in the words "cn behalf
of any Memher State of the United Nations and on behélf of any non-member State
to which an invitation has bean addressed by the Econoumic and Social Council't
those words would raise many irrelevant questions as to which Statss should

receive invitations and which should not,

The CHAIRMAN suggested that the words to which the Unitad States
representative had cbjected he replaced by the werds '"on behalf of any State,

Member or non-member of the United Nationst.

Mr., HENKIN (United States of America) fclt that that suggestion

over--emphasized the point and preferred the words "on behalf of any State',

Sir Leslie BR2SS (United Kingdom) saw no ohjections to the United
States suggestion, but felt that +ime should be allowed for further consideration

of the matter and for the Secretariat to ve consuited,

It _was agreed to refer articles 3L and 35 *o the Prafting Committee.

~



E/4iC.32/SR,40
page 38

Mr, JUVIGNY (France) believed that the Committee had agreed to
postpone discussion of article 36 until all the other provisions had been

examined, That decision should be adhered to, if only to save time.

The CHAIRMAN understood the representative of France to suggest that
consideration of article 36 be postponed until the rest of the draft Convention

had been disposed of and the need for reservations ascertained.

¥r, HENKIN (United States of America) approved that suggestion, and
further suggested that members should in the meantime cousider how article 35
should be drafted,

The CHAIRMAN concurred,

It was sc agread,

Vr, HERMENT (Belgium) thought that the statement in article 35 that
the Convention would ccme into force after the deoposit of the second instrument
of ratification or accession might discourage accessions to the Convention and
also invalidate arguments in favour of a higher number. He recalled tkat only
three States had ratified the 1938 Convention end proposed that the numter of
ratifications or accessicns required to brding the Convention into force should

be raised to six.

Mr. GIRSUD (Secretariat) feared that the number six might be too high
and, accordingly, that the Convention might come into force vco late or not at
2ll. So far as the present Convention was concerned it would be a good thing

to bring it into force, even if only two States acceded to it.

The CHAIRMAN had no objection to the suggestion of the representative
of Belgium, but felt that the question was one of some political importance and

within the competenge of the General Assembly rather than the Committee,

Mr. ROBINSON (Isrrel) =greed with the Chalrman.



E/AC.32/SR,40
page 39

Mr, JUVIGNY (France) suggested that it be stated in the Committee!s
report that certain members had thought it would be preferable, in the interests
of the refugees themselves, to increase the number of ratifications or accessions

required to bring the Convention into force,

. Mr, HERMENT. (Belgium) éxplained that he had referred- to the matter on
express instructions from his Government which did not wish to become a party

to the Convention if it was ratlfled by only two States,

Mr. GIRAUD (Secretariat) pointed out that a State could accede to the
Convention with the reservation that its accession would be valid only if
certain States or a certaln number of States also acceded to it, ° Such a clause
was so cormon in practlce that 1t need not be expressly included 1n the -

Convention,

Mr. JUVIGNY (Francé). pointed out that another possible solution -
although he did not support it - would be to leave the number of ratifications
required blank and to state in the Ad hoc Committee's report that in view of
the political importance of the question the decision in the matter should rest
with the General Assembly.

The CHAIRMAN felt that since no corments had been submitted on
article 37 except those made at the present meeting by the representative of
Belgium, the question could be resolved by leaving the text as it was and
including a note in the report of the Committee, as suggested by the French

representative,

It was so agreed.




E/AC, 32/SR 40
page 40

After an exchange of views with regard to a discrepancy between
the French texts of article 39 glven in document E/1618 and. document
E/AC.32/L, uo

-It was ag;eed to refer artlcles 38, 39 and LO to the Dra;_;gg,Commlttee.

Mr, WINTER»(Canada), with regard to the proposed addition of a
federal clause, wondered whether the Committee was certain that it wanted

such a clause.

_Mr, HENKIN (United States of America) recalled that the Committee
had alréédy éipreésed‘anyopinion on that queStion, which was however no.

longer in its competence, since it was to be referred to thé General Assembly,

The meeting rose at 6,5 p.m.



